RESEARCH INSIGHTS MSCI ESG RESEARCH LLC



June 2025

General FAQs for corporate issuers

MSCI ESG Research LLC Issuer Communications





Contents

1	Introduction4			
2	General Questions4			
2.1	Who is MSCI ESG Research?4			
2.2	Who are our clients?			
2.3	What are the main reports issued on my company?5			
2.4	How do investors use MSCI ESG Research's data and analysis?			
2.5	How do clients access issuer research reports and data?			
2.6	How can issuers access their reports? Is there an associated cost?			
2.7	How can companies access peer reports? Is there an associated cost?			
2.8	How can we arrange an introductory call or meeting to start a dialogue?7			
2.9	How does MSCI ESG Research engage with corporate issuers?7			
	WHAT WE DO DISCUSS WITH COMPANIES			
	WHAT WE DO NOT DISCUSS WITH COMPANIES			
2.10				
dire	ctly to issuers?			
2.11 Does MSCI ESG Research use disclosure standards and frameworks like TCFD, SASB, GRI and others in its analysis and ratings model?				
2.12	Can issuers promote their MSCI ESG Rating publicly?9			
2.13	How does MSCI ESG Research decide which companies to rate?9			
3	Process Questions 10			
3.1	When does MSCI ESG Research update company research?10			
3.2	What do the different dates listed on MSCI ESG Ratings reports mean?10			
3.3	When can a company provide feedback? 11			
3.4	What insight into my ESG Ratings report timing can I expect?12			
3.5	How can a company submit comments or feedback on their assessments?13			
3.6	When will MSCI ESG Research rate my company?13			



3.7 What is included in the advance notice ahead of the anticipated ESG Rating action date?				
3.8 What data sources does MSCI ESG Research use? Is the assessment only based on company disclosures?				
3.9 How does MSCI ESG Research use technology and AI in its research?				
3.10 We have information to share, but it is not public. Will this be considered?15				
3.11 Can we access our historic ESG Ratings reports (last 4-5 years)?15				
3.12 How can we improve our MSCI Sustainability & Climate assessment(s)?15				
3.13 Does MSCI ESG Research undertake sustainability and climate education				
initiatives with companies?15				
Notice and disclaimer16				



1 Introduction

Within MSCI ESG Research LLC (hereinafter MSCI ESG Research), MSCI Issuer Communications is the centralized point of contact for companies that MSCI ESG Research covers. This dedicated global team addresses any questions which these corporate rated entities may have about their own Sustainability and Climate assessments and oversees a standardized and systematic data feedback process.

This document aims to address frequently asked questions from issuers about MSCI ESG Research, our various company research reports, and processes on interacting with companies. More information is available in our <u>Procedures of Engagement with Rated Entities</u> (https://www.msci.com/documents/1296102/46b51c04-7eca-4934-135e-8216e8d19305).

For questions pertaining to the methodology underpinning MSCI ESG Research reports, please refer to our_public Methodologies webpage (<u>https://www.msci.com/esg-and-climate-methodologies</u>).

2 General Questions

2.1 What is MSCI ESG Research?

MSCI ESG Research provides in-depth research, ratings and analysis of the environmental, social and governance-related business practices of thousands of companies worldwide. Our research is designed to provide critical insights that can help institutional investors identify risks and opportunities that traditional investment research may overlook.





For more information on Sustainable & Climate Investing, visit <u>https://www.msci.com/our-solutions/sustainable-investing and https://www.msci.com/our-solutions/climate-and-net-zero, respectively</u>. For more information on MSCI ESG Ratings, visit <u>https://www.msci.com/our-solutions/esg-investing/esg-ratings</u>.

2.2 Who are the clients of MSCI ESG Research?

With 3,000 clients worldwide.¹ MSCI ESG Research covers a broad range of investment institutions, from asset owners to asset managers, wealth managers and hedge funds, as well as corporate advisors and major companies. Our clients have a wide range of sustainable and climate investment approaches (<u>https://www.msci.com/our-solutions</u>). Additionally, for those issuers interested in a deeper understanding of ESG Ratings, MSCI offers a paid subscription service, Corporate Sustainability Insights (CSI) Plus. Please visit our Corporate_sales@msci.com for more information.

2.3 What are the evaluations MSCI conducts on my company?

MSCI's evaluations produce reports as:

• **MSCI ESG Ratings report**: Designed to help institutional investors identify sustainability and climate risks and opportunities. Companies are assessed and rated on a 'AAA' to 'CCC' scale according to their exposure to industry-specific, financially material sustainability and climate risks and their ability to manage those risks relative to peers.

MSCI ESG Ratings provide an opinion of companies' management of financially relevant sustainability and climate risks and opportunities, defined as environmental, social, or governance-related issues that may result in financial losses or benefits to the company. MSCI ESG Ratings are industry-relative measures and are determined at the company level. Each rating takes into consideration the company's exposure to potentially material sustainability and climate risks, the quality of companies' management systems and governance structures to mitigate such risks, and where applicable, positioning to meet market demand for the provision of products and services that have a positive environmental or social contribution

• **MSCI Controversies report**: Identifies and assesses company involvement in controversies and alleged violations of international norms and principles.

MSCI Controversy Scores and Flags provide an opinion of a company's involvement in sustainability-related controversies and incidents where severity is assessed based on the nature and scale of the alleged adverse impact on society or the environment. MSCI Controversy Scores and the corresponding color-coded Flag are determined for individual controversy cases and consequently applied at the company level. Each controversy case assessment is based on a

As of December 2022, client count is based on the shipping address of the ultimate customer using the product. Affiliates, user locations or business units within a single organization are considered as separate clients. MSCI ESG and climate ratings, research and data are produced by MSCI ESG Research LLC, a subsidiary of MSCI Inc. MSCI ESG Indexes, Analytics, Real Assets, and Private Capital Solutions are products of MSCI Inc. that utilize information from MSCI ESG Research LLC. MSCI Indexes are administered by MSCI Limited and MSCI Deutschland GmbH..

Please note that this FAQs document is provided for informational purposes only and is not intended as legal advice. We encourage you to discuss any questions that you may have about the regulations themselves and how they apply to your firm, with your respective legal and compliance departments. Also, please note that the timeframes in this document may be subject to the EU legislative process and may be subject to change.



qualitative evaluation of the case severity based on the nature and scale of alleged impact from Minor to Very Severe, the company's direct or indirect role in the case, and the case status.

• **MSCI Business Involvement Screening Research (BISR):** Identifies and classifies company involvement in activities such as the production of controversial weapons, tobacco products, or those that violate religious screening mandates such as Catholic or Islamic values.

Business Involvement Screening Research provides company-level data on the extent of involvement in products, services or events that may cause, contribute to, or be associated with adverse social or environmental impacts. BISR also provides data on companies' involvement in products and services that may conflict with certain investors' values. The data is based on disclosed revenue and estimates of revenue that are based on extrapolations from related company disclosures

2.4 How do investors use MSCI ESG Research's data and analysis?

MSCI ESG Research's data, analysis and insights are used in a variety of ways by institutional investors, depending on their investment objective(s) and/or strategy or mandate. MSCI sustainability indexes provide institutional investors with effective and transparent tools to integrate sustainability or climate considerations in their investment process and portfolios. Investors need to understand the challenges and opportunities companies face, evaluate their net-zero and sustainability strategies, and develop investment and portfolio-building strategies based on Sustainability data.

2.5 How do clients access issuer research reports and data?

Sustainability data and assessments can support users in better understanding companies' key sustainability and climate exposures, as well as their market positioning. They can identify and act on gaps, and pinpoint key sustainability issues where companies are leading – or lagging behind. The investor demand for transparency and action is accelerating at a rapid pace and driving sustainability and climate integration across the entire investment process. MSCI ESG Research clients can access research reports and data via our proprietary platform, MSCI ONE, via subscription services and through data feeds and various third-party distributors.

2.6 How can issuers access their reports? Is there an associated cost?

Issuers can log in to our dedicated online issuer portal (<u>https://one.msci.com/IssuerOverview</u>) to access their own company's reports at any time. In case of any login issues, please reach out to the Issuer Communications team (<u>esgissuercomm@msci.com</u>). There is no associated cost.

If you need to create an account on our online issuer portal, please refer to our Getting Started guide, available here: https://www.msci.com/downloads/web/msci-com/discover-msci/resources-for-issuers/MSCI%20ESG%20Issuer%20Communications%20Portal%20-%20User%20Guide.pdf



2.7 How can companies access peer reports? Is there an associated cost?

Peer and industry reports are only available via subscription. If your company is interested in subscribing, please contact our Corporates Sales team (<u>esg_corporate_sales@msci.com</u>).

2.8 How can we arrange an introductory call or meeting to start a dialogue?

While we welcome issuer interest in MSCI ESG Research at any time, we strive to ensure that our communications are both efficient and fair to the issuers that we research and rate. As such, **we are unable to host general introductory calls/meetings with issuers**. Instead, we encourage issuers to review this FAQ document and the other materials available on our online issuer portal (<u>https://one.msci.com/IssuerOverview</u>), including our Issuer Academy (<u>https://issuer-academy.looop.co/</u>), and send any specific questions or concerns to us via email (<u>esgissuercomm@msci.com</u>).

It is important to note that MSCI ESG Research uses publicly available data and information in its evaluations and does not accept nonpublic data and information through its online issuer portal.

We do not require issuers to submit data or information; all data submissions through the online issuer portal require links to supporting public disclosures. MSCI ESG Research does not collect information through surveys or questionnaires, except in certain instances where the Issuer Communications team may facilitate requests for data feedback with specific issuers. We do not conduct general interviews.

For those issuers interested in a deeper understanding of ESG Ratings, MSCI offers a paid subscription service, Corporate Sustainability Insights (CSI) Plus. Please visit our Corporate sales webpage (<u>https://www.msci.com/our-clients/corporates</u>) or email <u>esg_corporate_sales@msci.com</u> for more information.

2.9 How does MSCI ESG Research engage with corporate issuers?

MSCI ESG Research's primary focus is to ensure the quality of our data, reports and assessments. As such, we provide companies with the issuer-verifiable data underlying our research and analysis for review on our online issuer portal, available to issuers at no cost throughout the year. Generally, issuer-verifiable data points include data points where issuer disclosures are considered the primary source of information. This does not include data sourced from third parties, estimates, composite indicators, or evaluations made by MSCI ESG Research. Please refer to the relevant methodology documents regarding how these data points are determined and reviewed by the relevant internal data experts and analytical personnel.

We are also committed to providing companies with on-demand access to their own MSCI ESG Research reports. We endeavor to address questions that companies may ask about our research reports, methodologies, and processes in a timely fashion through our Issuer Communications team. Additionally, we send operational emails to registered contacts in our system throughout the year.



General guidance on topics about which we can and cannot interact with companies are noted below.

WHAT WE DO DISCUSS WITH COMPANIES

- High-level methodology overview for core products.
- Basic methodology questions. Some examples include:
 - General components of the ratings (e.g., exposure vs. management);
 - High-level data point description/definitions/clarifications;
 - General data sources.
- Basic report format questions.
- Process-oriented questions timing of different research/report updates, data verification process, etc.

WHAT WE DO NOT DISCUSS WITH COMPANIES

- How to improve an ESG Rating or any other MSCI ESG Research assessment, or how to improve corporate issuers' public disclosures related to sustainability issues;
- How a company's peers are performing on sustainability issues;
- Any advisory or consultancy solutions to address or report on sustainability risks.

2.10How is the analytical team structured? Can analytical personnel speak directly to issuers?

MSCI ESG Research collects a significant amount of data that factors into our company research. In addition to leveraging alternative data sources, our analytical personnel are structured around thematic, regional, and industry areas of expertise. For example, we have governance data experts, a dedicated controversies team, and carbon data researchers. Our sector leads provide an extensive view on companies in the context of their unique industry dynamics. We believe this innovative matrix approach lends itself to objectivity in the evaluation process.

Given we do not follow a 1:1 company-analyst structure, we request that, in the first instance, companies review all their relevant MSCI ESG Research data and our MSCI Sustainability and Climate Methodologies (<u>https://www.msci.com/sustainability-and-climate-methodologies</u>) and send feedback via our dedicated online issuer portal (<u>https://one.msci.com/lssuerOverview</u>). Once we review issuer feedback, should a call be necessary to clarify any items, we would be happy to arrange one with the relevant members of our analytical team for a more targeted or in-depth discussion.

In addition, we pursue opportunities to connect our experts with companies in a fair and equitable way, such as through larger-scale issuer education sessions. We encourage you to look out for MSCI ESG Research events for issuers. Invitations are sent to contacts listed in the online issuer portal.



2.11 Does MSCI ESG Research use disclosure standards and frameworks like TCFD, SASB, GRI and others in its analysis and ratings model?

MSCI ESG Research welcomes initiatives that encourage issuers to share better and more meaningful disclosures around sustainability and climate. Over the past years, MSCI has been working with a variety of different initiatives by sharing the views expressed by our methodologies globally. We anticipate that MSCI's high level of participation will continue going forward.

While there may be broad overlap in our metrics with one or more of these initiatives (e.g., our Carbon Emissions Key Issue covers many of the aspects of the TCFD reporting framework), we do not use or place emphasis on any one framework over another.

It is important to note that MSCI and its subsidiaries do not advise or consult with companies on what to disclose or how to report certain information.

2.12Can issuers promote their MSCI ESG Rating publicly?

Issuers can request an MSCI ESG Rating badge (AAA-CCC) to add to their materials (e.g., annual report, sustainability report, investor presentations, issuer website, etc.). To request a badge, issuers must complete this online form and agree to the terms and conditions: <u>https://info.msci.com/I/36252/2019-07-30/ttl7bb</u>. Upon submitting a complete application, an MSCI representative will share the relevant Rating logo with you, along with the "How to Reference an MSCI ESG Rating Guide" (<u>https://www.msci.com/documents/1296102/15233886/How-to-Reference-an-MSCI-ESG-Rating-Final.pdf</u>).

Please note that the use of your MSCI ESG Rating for financing purposes requires a separate license. If you would like to use your MSCI ESG Rating in capital raising, please contact our Corporates Sales team (<u>esg_corporate_sales@msci.com</u>).

2.13 How does MSCI ESG Research decide which companies to rate?

MSCI ESG Research rates both equity and fixed income issuers. On the equity side, MSCI primarily covers issuers that are constituents of the MSCI market capitalization weighted indexes. Our market-cap weighted indexes are among the most widely used benchmarks in the financial industry. Collectively, they provide detailed equity market coverage across developed, emerging and frontier markets investable opportunity sets.

On the fixed income front, issuances covered in the Bloomberg Global Aggregate Indexes are a starting point in the eligibility criteria. In line with that, MSCI ESG Research does not conduct solicited ratings. To find out if your company is a constituent of one of the MSCI market cap or MSCI Indexes, you may use the MSCI Index Constituent Viewer, a freely available feature on MSCI ONE. To learn about a subscription-based solution which provides deeper insights into a company's weighting in these indexes and the ability to benchmark inclusion versus peers across MSCI's full ESG Ratings coverage universe, please contact Corporate Sales



(<u>esg_corporates_sales@msci.com</u>). To request an MSCI Index logo to use in company reporting, please contact us at <u>clientservice@msci.com</u>.

3 Process Questions

3.1 When does MSCI ESG Research update company data?

Our ongoing data collection and review processes include continuous, independent monitoring of alternative data sources and public company disclosures. MSCI ESG Research analytical personnel review and publish data based on each product's specific review and publication cycle, aligned with our independent and ongoing data collection and monitoring.

Certain event-specific data types may be updated on the same day and as frequently as weekly or monthly (e.g., AGM, leadership changes, event-based Controversies updates). Ad hoc updates may occur in certain cases determined at the sole discretion of MSCI ESG Research, aligned with the relevant rules-based methodology. Other data review and publication cycles occur on a typically annual basis; the timing of analyst reviews is determined solely by MSCI ESG Research.

As mentioned, issuer feedback is optional, and welcome anytime throughout the year through our online issuer portal. All data updates and data corrections are subject to MSCI ESG Research analytical personnel review per our rules-based, consistent methodologies. Approved data updates will be reflected in published assessments and reports only during the next content publication cycle for the relevant product.

3.2 What do the different dates listed on MSCI ESG Ratings reports mean?

Updates to underlying data and scores by MSCI ESG Research do not in all cases lead to an analytical personnel review of the ESG Rating. The Industry Adjusted Score and ESG Rating are only recalculated at the time of a MSCI ESG Research rating action and comprehensive review.

If certain datapoints are updated by MSCI ESG Research, the relevant scores will be automatically updated within a week. Please refer to the MSCI ESG Ratings Process (<u>https://www.msci.com/sustainability-and-climate-methodologies</u>) for more information.

Recent developments affecting ESG Ratings scores are detailed in a dedicated section on ESG Ratings reports. ESG Ratings reports display recent developments as follows:

- Rating action date: the date of the last ESG Rating review
- Last report update: the date of the last update of any data point displayed in the ESG Ratings report
- Last score change date: the date of the last update of a Key Issue Score

The ESG Rating action date is indicated on the first page of all MSCI ESG Ratings reports and displays the date when a company last received a full, in-depth data and analytical review and ESG Rating.





LAST REPORT UPDATE: January 25, 2023

3.3 When can a company provide feedback?

MSCI ESG Research has established several data review and verification processes across its core research, including environmental, social and governance issues as well as controversies.

Data feedback submissions made through the online issuer portal will be reviewed by analytical personnel as per each respective product's review and update timing, which differs across products as indicated by the dates on company reports. Approved data updates will be reflected in published assessments and reports only during the next content publication cycle for that relevant product. Our ongoing data collection and review processes include continuous, independent monitoring of alternative data sources and public company disclosures.

Issuers are welcome to review data and published reports at their convenience and submit data feedback at any time throughout the year. There is no deadline or obligation to respond – we welcome feedback at any time. However, depending on the timing of when the approved data update falls within the product's publication cycle, there may be a gap between when these updates are made both on our portal and in published reports and assessments. Issuers will continue to receive notifications as and when data feedback submissions are reviewed by analytical personnel.





Exhibit 1: MSCI ESG Research Company Data and Ratings Review Process



3.4 When will MSCI Research update my ESG Ratings report?

Companies' ESG Ratings are reviewed by industry analysts on a typically annual basis for ACWI companies. The timing of analyst reviews is determined solely by MSCI ESG Research. We aim to provide listed contacts for issuers in our issuer contact database for MSCI ESG Ratings coverage with a notification approximately **four months** in advance of the anticipated month when their next MSCI ESG Rating action date is expected to occur. Issuers are welcome to provide feedback to MSCI ESG Research at any time via our dedicated online issuer platform

(<u>https://one.msci.com/IssuerOverview</u>). At the time of review, analysts incorporate the latest data disclosed by companies. MSCI ESG Ratings aim to incorporate data from all corporate disclosures published up to three calendar months prior to the ESG Rating action date.

We introduced an advance notice and targeted data feedback window to:

- Provide all issuers with the opportunity to prepare for their upcoming publication of their next anticipated full in-depth review and ESG Rating, including by submitting any publicly available documents and data feedback at least three calendar months in advance of the typically annual ESG Rating action date;
- Maintain our ongoing commitment to high quality data standards across MSCI ESG Research data and reports; and
- Ensure MSCI ESG Research analytical personnel review and assess relevant issuersubmitted data feedback during the ESG Rating review period which may be eligible for inclusion as part of the next anticipated ESG Rating, per the consistent application of our rules-based methodology.

Please note that issuers will receive these advance notices based only on our anticipated review timeframe. MSCI ESG Research reserves the right to change the anticipated review date at any



time without prior notice. We also maintain the right to make data updates and data corrections to MSCI ESG Ratings reports at any time as per our independent assessment processes. Mid-cycle updates may occur in certain cases determined at the sole discretion of MSCI ESG Research, such as:

- An upgrade/downgrade in controversy severity from/to Very Severe
- Exceptional circumstances

MSCI ESG Research may extend the rating review period beyond twelve months from the last ESG Rating action date, including due to some of the following possible reasons:

- To reduce rating volatility following major methodology changes
- To accommodate more complex reviews

Given the dynamic nature of our data, we do not provide draft data or reports prior to publication, which means companies may engage with MSCI ESG Research at any time on an ongoing basis to update data, seek clarity on the assessments, or ask questions.

3.5 How can a company submit comments or feedback on their assessments?

Companies can provide comments and feedback **at any time** on an ongoing basis through the online issuer portal, which includes detailed instructions on how companies can review their data and information on file and provide feedback and comments.

We request that companies keep the following key points in mind when providing feedback:

- All data feedback requires supporting hyperlinks to relevant disclosures in the public domain.
- After reviewing and editing data, press the save icon. When reviewing Climate data, users must also press the "Bulk submit" button to ensure data flows to MSCI analytical personnel for their review. (For Climate data, users can save feedback in draft to share with their colleagues before pressing "Bulk submit".)
- Click the submit button only when you are ready to submit your full feedback.

Companies may also use the Document Store feature to see the documents MSCI ESG Research has sourced on your company to date and add public documents directly if anything is missing.

Companies are informed of the action MSCI ESG Research takes on their submitted feedback via email notification.

We do not have a strict, time-bound feedback period. Instead, we aim to provide companies the flexibility in opportunity to provide feedback on our data, and welcome comments and updates at any time.

For any questions, reach out to Issuer Communications at esgissuercomm@msci.com.



3.6 What is included in the advance notice ahead of the anticipated ESG Rating action date?

Advance notices will be sent by MSCI Issuer Communications typically during the first working days of each month, with the data feedback submission deadline generally corresponding to the last working day of the same month.

For example, issuers with an anticipated ESG Rating action date occurring during the month of August would receive an advance notice from MSCI Issuer Communications within the first business days of April notifying them of their corresponding data feedback submission deadline of April 30 pertaining to any relevant data feedback that may be eligible for inclusion as part of the next anticipated ESG Rating. The below visual aims to show this indicative timeline for illustrative purposes only.



We invite corporate issuers to share their data feedback through our online issuer portal at any time throughout the year as it is used across MSCI ESG Research products, including MSCI ESG Ratings.

3.7 What data sources does MSCI ESG Research use? Is the assessment only based on company disclosures?

MSCI ESG Research collects public data from a variety of sources, including, but not limited to, alternative data sources such as flood risk and other physical risk sources. Sources include but are not limited to:

- Specialized academic, government, regulatory and NGO datasets (e.g., product recalls, consumer complaints, etc.);
- Asset-level data (e.g., facility locations, mine production, etc.);
- Public company disclosures (e.g., sustainability reports, proxy reports, regulatory filings, etc.);
- Global and local media and news sources.

The MSCI ESG Rating assessment is not based solely on voluntary public company reporting. We also use alternative datasets to corroborate, expand upon, and balance the information presented by voluntary company disclosure and provide institutional investors an objective view of a company's risk profile.

While greater disclosure of meaningful data is still needed and desired for the most accurate evaluation of a company's sustainability performance, we have found that voluntary corporate Please note that this FAQs document is provided for informational purposes only and is not intended as legal advice. We encourage you to discuss any questions that you may have about the regulations themselves and how they apply to your firm, with your respective legal and compliance departments. Also, please note that the timeframes in this document may be subject to the EU legislative process and may be subject to change.



reporting on its own is not sufficient for investors to assess companies' potential sustainability risks and opportunities.

3.8 We have information to share, but it is not public. Will this be considered?

No. We are strong supporters of information in the public domain, available to all market participants, in the interest of market transparency. We cannot use any internal or confidential information. We require that all data feedback shared via our online issuer portal be accompanied by the URL, or web link, where the information can be found publicly.

3.9 Can we access our historic ESG Ratings reports (last 4-5 years)?

No. Our system only displays the current report. However, you can see your historic letter rating on your current MSCI ESG Ratings report.

3.10 How can we improve our MSCI assessment(s)?

In order to avoid any perceived conflict of interest, **MSCI ESG Research does not provide any advisory or consulting services to companies** on how they can improve their ratings or other MSCI ESG Research evaluations. Our product-specific methodologies provide detail regarding our standard, rules-based approaches across our suite of products.

3.11 Does MSCI ESG Research undertake sustainability and climate education initiatives with companies?

Yes. In addition to our interaction with issuers via our data review processes, we engage with issuers on matters related to MSCI ESG Research methodologies and sustainable investing more generally, including the ways in which we see investors addressing sustainability and climate issues in their investment processes. We are growing our library of resources for companies, participate actively in industry events, and host workshops and seminars for issuers in various global locations. We invite issuers to expand their knowledge of MSCI ESG Research and Ratings through Issuer Academy, available as a customized learning experience through our online issuer portal.



Contact us

msci.com/contact-us

AMERICAS

United States	+ 1 888 588 4567 *
Canada	+ 1 416 687 6270
Brazil	+ 55 11 4040 7830
Mexico	+ 52 81 1253 4020

EUROPE, MIDDLE EAST & AFRICA

South Africa	+ 27 21 673 0103
Germany	+ 49 69 133 859 00
Switzerland	+ 41 22 817 9777
United Kingdom	+ 44 20 7618 2222
Italy	+ 39 02 5849 0415
France	+ 33 17 6769 810

ASIA PACIFIC

China	+ 86 21 61326611	
Hong Kong	+ 852 2844 9333	
India	+ 91 22 6784 9160	
Malaysia	1800818185 *	
South Korea	+ 82 70 4769 4231	
Singapore	+ 65 67011177	
Australia	+ 612 9033 9333	
Taiwan	008 0112 7513 *	
Thailand	0018 0015 6207 7181 *	
Japan	+ 81 3 4579 0333	
* toll-free		

About MSCI

MSCI is a leading provider of critical decision support tools and services for the global investment community. With over 50 years of expertise in research, data and technology, we power better investment decisions by enabling clients to understand and analyze key drivers of risk and return and confidently build more effective portfolios. We create industry-leading research-enhanced solutions that clients use to gain insight into and improve transparency across the investment process.

About MSCI ESG Research Products and Services

MSCI ESG Research products and services are provided by MSCI ESG Research LLC, and are designed to provide in-depth research, ratings and analysis of environmental, social and governance-related business practices to companies worldwide. ESG ratings, data and analysis from MSCI ESG Research LLC. Are also used in the construction of the MSCI ESG Indexes. MSCI ESG Research LLC is a Registered Investment Adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 and a subsidiary of MSCI Inc.

To learn more, please visit www.msci.com.

MSCI 💮

Notice and disclaimer

This document and all of the information contained in it, including without limitation all text, data, graphs, charts (collectively, the "Information") is the property of MSCI Inc. or its subsidiaries (collectively, "MSCI"), or MSCI's licensors, direct or indirect suppliers or any third party involved in making or compiling any Information (collectively, with MSCI, the "Information Providers") and is provided for informational purposes only. The Information may not be modified, reverse-engineered, reproduced or redisseminated in whole or in part without prior written permission from MSCI. All rights in the Information are reserved by MSCI and/or its Information Providers.

The Information may not be used to create derivative works or to verify or correct other data or information. For example (but without limitation), the Information may not be used to create indexes, databases, risk models, analytics, software, or in connection with the issuing, offering, sponsoring, managing or marketing of any securities, portfolios, financial products or other investment vehicles utilizing or based on, linked to, tracking or otherwise derived from the Information or any other MSCI data, information, products or services.

The user of the Information assumes the entire risk of any use it may make or permit to be made of the Information. NONE OF THE INFORMATION PROVIDERS MAKES ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE INFORMATION (OR THE RESULTS TO BE OBTAINED BY THE USE THEREOF), AND TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, EACH INFORMATION PROVIDER EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF ORIGINALITY, ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, NON-INFRINCEMENT, COMPLETENESS, MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE) WITH RESPECT TO ANY OF THE INFORMATION.

Without limiting any of the foregoing and to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, in no event shall any Information Provider have any liability regarding any of the Information for any direct, indirect, special, punitive, consequential (including lost profits) or any other damages even if notified of the possibility of such damages. The foregoing shall not exclude or limit any liability that may not by applicable law be excluded or limited, including without limitation (as applicable), any liability for death or personal injury to the extent that such injury results from the negligence or willful default of itself, its servants, agents or sub-contractors.

Information containing any historical information, data or analysis should not be taken as an indication or guarantee of any future performance, analysis, forecast or prediction. Past performance does not guarantee future results.

The Information may include "Signals," defined as quantitative attributes or the product of methods or formulas that describe or are derived from calculations using historical data. Neither these Signals nor any description of historical data are intended to provide investment advice or a recommendation to make (or refrain from making) any investment decision or asset allocation and should not be relied upon as such. Signals are inherently backward-looking because of their use of historical data, and they are not intended to predict the future. The relevance, correlations and accuracy of Signals frequently will change materially.

The Information should not be relied on and is not a substitute for the skill, judgment and experience of the user, its management, employees, advisors and/or clients when making investment and other business decisions. All Information is impersonal and not tailored to the needs of any person, entity or group of persons.

None of the Information constitutes an offer to sell (or a solicitation of an offer to buy), any security, financial product or other investment vehicle or any trading strategy.

It is not possible to invest directly in an index. Exposure to an asset class or trading strategy or other category represented by an index is only available through third party investable instruments (if any) based on that index. MSCI does not issue, sponsor, endorse, market, offer, review or otherwise express any opinion regarding any fund, ETF, derivative or other security, investment, financial product or trading strategy that is based on, linked to or seeks to provide an investment return related to the performance of any MSCI index (collectively, "Index Linked Investments"). MSCI makes no assurance that any Index Linked Investments will accurately track index performance or provide positive investment returns. MSCI Inc. is not an investment adviser or fiduciary and MSCI makes no representation regarding the advisability of investing in any Index Linked Investments.

Index returns do not represent the results of actual trading of investible assets/securities. MSCI maintains and calculates indexes, but does not manage actual assets. The calculation of indexes and index returns may deviate from the stated methodology. Index returns do not reflect payment of any sales charges or fees an investor may pay to purchase the securities underlying the index or Index Linked Investments. The imposition of these fees and charges would cause the performance of an Index Linked Investment to be different than the MSCI index performance.

The Information may contain back tested data. Back-tested performance is not actual performance, but is hypothetical. There are frequently material differences between back tested performance results and actual results subsequently achieved by any investment strategy.

Constituents of MSCI equity indexes are listed companies, which are included in or excluded from the indexes according to the application of the relevant index methodologies. Accordingly, constituents in MSCI equity indexes may include MSCI Inc., clients of MSCI or suppliers to MSCI. Inclusion of a security within an MSCI index is not a recommendation by MSCI to buy, sell, or hold such security, nor is it considered to be investment advice.

Data and information produced by various affiliates of MSCI Inc., including MSCI ESG Research LLC and Barra LLC, may be used in calculating certain MSCI indexes. More information can be found in the relevant index methodologies on www.msci.com.

MSCI receives compensation in connection with licensing its indexes to third parties. MSCI Inc.'s revenue includes fees based on assets in Index Linked Investments. Information can be found in MSCI Inc.'s company filings on the Investor Relations section of msci.com.

MSCI ESG Research LLC is a Registered Investment Adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 and a subsidiary of MSCI Inc. Neither MSCI nor any of its products or services recommends, endorses, approves or otherwise expresses any opinion regarding any issuer, securities, financial products or instruments or trading strategies and MSCI's products or services are not a recommendation to make (or refrain from making) any kind of investment decision and may not be relied on as such, provided that applicable products or services from MSCI ESG Research may constitute investment advice. MSCI ESG Research materials, including materials utilized in any MSCI ESG Indexes or other products, have not been submitted to, nor received approval from, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission or any other regulatory body. MSCI ESG and climate ratings, research and data are produced by MSCI ESG Research LLC, a subsidiary of MSCI Inc. MSCI ESG Indexes, Analytics and Real Estate are products of MSCI Inc. that utilize information from MSCI ESG Research LLC. MSCI Indexes are administered by MSCI Limited (UK) and MSCI Deutschland GmbH.

Please note that the issuers mentioned in MSCI ESG Research materials sometimes have commercial relationships with MSCI ESG Research and/or MSCI Inc. (collectively, "MSCI") and that these relationships create potential conflicts of interest. In some cases, the issuers or their affiliates purchase research or other products or services from one or more MSCI affiliates. In other cases, MSCI ESG Research rates financial products such as mutual funds or ETFs that are managed by MSCI's clients or their affiliates, or are based on MSCI Inc. Indexes. In addition, constituents in MSCI Inc. equity indexes include companies that subscribe to MSCI products or services. In some cases, MSCI clients pay fees based in whole or part on the assets they manage. MSCI ESG Research has taken a number of steps to mitigate potential conflicts of interest and safeguard the integrity and independence of its research and ratings. More information about these conflict mitigation measures is available in our Form ADV, available at https://adviserinfo.sec.gov/firm/summary/169222.



Any use of or access to products, services or information of MSCI requires a license from MSCI. MSCI, Barra, RiskMetrics, IPD and other MSCI brands and product names are the trademarks, service marks, or registered trademarks of MSCI or its subsidiaries in the United States and other jurisdictions. The Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS) was developed by and is the exclusive property of MSCI and S&P Global Market Intelligence. "Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS)" is a service mark of MSCI and S&P Global Market Intelligence.

MIFID2/MIFIR notice: MSCI ESG Research LLC does not distribute or act as an intermediary for financial instruments or structured deposits, nor does it deal on its own account, provide execution services for others or manage client accounts. No MSCI ESG Research product or service supports, promotes or is intended to support or promote any such activity. MSCI ESG Research is an independent provider of ESG data. Privacy notice: For information about how MSCI collects and uses personal data, please refer to our Privacy Notice at

Privacy notice: For information about how MSCI collects and uses personal data, please refer to our Privacy Notice at https://www.msci.com/privacy-pledge.